
Planning and Zoning Commission

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda - Final

City Hall

300 W. Main Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas

City Hall, Briefing Room6:30 PMMonday, June 22, 2020

Due to an imminent threat to public health and safety arising from the COVID-19 

pandemic, this meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be held via 

videoconference.  The members of the Commission will participate remotely via 

videoconference.  No facility shall be available for the public to attend in person. 

Members of the public may participate in the meeting remotely via broadcast by webinar 

or telephone through the following URL location:

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://gptx.zoom.us/j/99969563321?pwd=RHpDZWtWNkZBZ2lWOUtkR2FyZHVLQT09

Password: gdARBp467f

Or iPhone one-tap : 

    US: +13462487799,,99969563321#,,1#,974963#  or 

+14086380968,,99969563321#,,1#,974963#

Or Telephone:

    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

        US: +1 346 248 7799  or +1 408 638 0968  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782  or 

+1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 876 9923  or +1 301 715 8592

Webinar ID: 999 6956 3321

Password: 974963

International numbers available: https://gptx.zoom.us/u/abSomI6fgY

All meeting participants will be automatically muted until it is their turn to speak.  To be 

recognized to speak, use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom meeting platform.  Those 

joining the meeting by phone may press *9 to raise your hand.  After speaking, please 

remute your phone by pressing *6. 

Any speaker wishing to visually display documents in connection with a presentation must 

submit them to sware@gptx.org and chartman@gptx.org  in PDF format no later than 

3:00 o’clock p.m. on Monday, June 22nd.

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020



June 22, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

                                                 __________________________________

                                                                    Public Hearing                                                             

                                                           6:30 p.m. Council Chambers 

                                                 __________________________________

                                                  Chairperson Joshua Spare Presiding

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flags and to the Texas Flag 

Citizen Comments -  Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes 

on any item not the agenda by completing and submitting a speaker card.

Public Hearing Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

approved by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public 

Hearing Consent Agenda items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be 

considered separately.  The Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from 

the Public Hearing Consent Agenda.

1 20-10073 Approval of Minutes of the June 8, 2020 P&Z meeting. 

PZ Draft Minutes 06-08-2020.pdfAttachments:

2 20-10074 P170105A - Amending Plat - QT 946 Addition, Lot 2, Block 1 (Commissioner 

Spare/City Council District 6).  Amending Plat of Lot 2, Block 1, QT 946 Addition 

to adjust the location of the detention easement. Lot 2, Block 1, QT 946 Addition, 

City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-342, within the IH-20 

Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 4043 Lake Ridge Pkwy. The agent is 

Doug Stewart, Texas Heritage Survey and the owner is Jay Patel, Fusion Lodging, 

LLC

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Amending Plat

Attachments:

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020



June 22, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

3 20-10075 RP200402 - Replat - Mira Lagos No. H Addition, Lots 7R and 8R, Block D 

(Commissioner Spare/City Council District 6).  Consider a request for a replat to 

move lot line between Lots 7R and 8R.  Located at 2819 and 2823 Mariposa Dr. 

Legally described as Mira Lagos No. H Addition, Lots 7 and 8, Block D, City of 

Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned for Planned Development 271C.  The 

owners are Robert Garcia, Grand Homes, and Donald Pitre.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Replat.pdf

Attachments:

Public Hearing Postponement, Recess, and Continuations

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.7 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing 

for which notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or 

after the time and place the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed 

and continued any time after the hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.7.C of the UDC 

states if a postponement or continuance of a public hearing is to a specific date and time no 

later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, the announcement of the 

postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has been 

postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and 

no additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct 

staff to re-notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet 

commenced.

4 20-10072 SU200604/S200604 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Texas Trust Credit Union 

(Commissioner Hedin/City Council District 2).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for 

Texas Trust Credit Union, a 4,280 sq. ft. building with three drive-through lanes.  Lot 

1R2, Block 1, Khol's Grand Prairie Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, 

Texas, zoned PD-21, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 

5850 W IH-20. The agent is Oculus Inc., the applicant is Amy Scherer, L. Keeley 

Construction, and the owner is Alan Barbee, Texas Trust Credit Union.

Tabled 

Items for Individual Consideration

Page 3 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020



June 22, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

5 20-9994 S200203 - Site Plan - Molto Warehouses at Hwy 161 and Rock Island Rd 

(Commissioner Fisher/City Council District 1).  Site Plan for a 205,000 SF 

warehouse & a 250,000 SF warehouse on one lot.  42.78 acres out of the John C. 

Read Survey, Abstract 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 

Light Industrial (LI) District, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally 

located southeast of SH 161 Service Road and W. Hardrock Road, and addressed 

as 3545 Hardrock Road, Grand Prairie, Texas. The applicant is Drew Hayes, 

Method Architecture, the consultant is Anna Medvedeva, Langan Engineering, and 

the owner is Chad Parrish, Molto Properties.

City Council Action:  July 14, 2020

S200203 Exhibit A-Location Map

S200203 Exhibit B-Site Plan

S200203 Exhibit C-Landscape Plan

S200203 Exhibit D Bldg A Elev

S200203 Exhibit D Bldg B Elev

S200203 Exhibit E Tree Preservation

Attachments:

6 20-10077 S200603 - Site Plan - Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park (Commissioner Fisher/City 

Council District 1).  Site Plan for Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park, a development with 

two warehouse buildings totaling 550,518 sq. ft. on 33.44 acres.  Tracts 14.2 and 

27, Isreal Jennings Survey, Abstract No. 679, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, 

Texas, zoned Light Industrial, and addressed as 2400 and 2701 W Hunter Ferrell 

Rd. The applicant is B. Cooper, CHI/Acquisitions, L.P., the owner is Hunter Ferrell 

Land, L.P., and Pete Lindamood.

City Council Action:  July 14, 2020

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan for Building A.pdf

Exhibit C - Site Plan for Building B.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations for Building A.pdf

Exhibit E - Building Elevations for Building B.pdf

Exhibit F - Landscape Plan for Building A.pdf

Exhibit G - Landscape Plan for Building B.pdf

Attachments:

Page 4 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020



June 22, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Public Hearing

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under 

Public Hearing Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a 

request to speak card.  A person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her 

support or opposition to a case without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the 

entrance to the City Council Chambers and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff 

member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of 

the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those favoring the request shall have 

a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments for the request.  

Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that 

representatives be appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  

Commissioners may have questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to 

answer the Commission's questions will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These 

rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole or in part, by a unanimous vote of the 

Commission.

7 20-10078 SU200603 - Specific Use Permit - Camp Wisdom Plaza (Commissioner 

Connor/City Council District 4).  Specific Use Permit for Beer/Wine Sales in a 

proposed Convenience Store with Gasoline Sales.  A portion of Tracts 2C05 and 

2C05A, John W Harwood Survey, Abstract No. 661, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant 

County, Texas, zoned PD-130, and generally located at the northwest corner of W 

Camp Wisdom Rd and Lynn Rd. The applicant is Houshang Jahuani, Jahani 

Consulting Engineers Inc., and the owner is Anil Pathak.

City Council Action:  July 14, 2020

Exhibit A - Property Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Attachment i - Citizen Comment.pdf

Attachments:

Adjournment

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., the 

Planning and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted on 06/19/2020

Monica Espinoza

Planning Secretary 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  If you plan to attend this public meeting and you 

have a disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 

hours in advance. Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.

Page 5 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020



June 22, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Page 6 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10073 Name: Approval of Minutes of the June 8, 2020 P&Z
meeting.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:6/15/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:6/22/2020

Title: Approval of Minutes of the June 8, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 06-08-2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
Approval of Minutes of the June 8, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 JUNE 8, 2020 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Josh Spare, Vice-Chairperson Shawn Connor, 
Secretary Max Coleman, and Commissioners, Cheryl Smith, Warren Landrum, Julia Perez, Bill 
Moser, Clayton Fisher, Eric Hedin. 
     
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: None  
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Deputy City Manager Bill Crolley, Savannah Ware, Chief City 
Planner, Mark Dempsey, Deputy City Attorney, Brett Huntsman, Transportation Planner, and 
Chris Hartmann, Executive Assistant. 
  
Chairperson Josh Spare called the meeting to order by Video Conference at 6:31 p.m. and gave 
the invocation, and Commissioner Smith led the pledge of allegiance to the US Flag, and the 
Texas Flag. 
 
Citizen Comments: None  
 
AGENDA ITEM: #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES: To approve the minutes of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting of May 26, 2020.  
  
CONSENT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #2- RP200602 - Replat - Grand Prairie Estates, 
Lot 8-AR, Block U (Commissioner Perez/City Council District 3). Replat of Lots 8-A and 9, 
Block U, Grand Prairie Estates, combining two lots into one lot on 0.343 acres.  Lots 8-A and 9, 
Block U, Grand Prairie Estates, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned SF-3, and 
addressed as 814 and 818 Sanders St. The applicant is Luke Keeton, Keeton Surveying Co. and 
the owner is Dave Bentley. 
  
Commissioner Connor made a motion to approve the minutes of May 26, 2020, approve consent 
agenda case RP200602. 
  
Motion:  Connor           
Second:  Moser                                   
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Fisher, Hedin Landrum, Moser, Perez, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, JUNE 8, 2020 
 

2 
 

 
 

Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #3 – SU200602/S200602 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - 
360 Car Spa (Commissioner Fisher/City Council District 1).  Chief City Planner Savannah Ware 
presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Specific Use Permit for a Car 
Wash within a Commercial zoning district.  Lot 7, Block 100, Dalworth Park Addition, City of 
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned C, within Central Business District No. 1, and 
addressed as 2125 Galveston St. The agent is Andres Barragan, the applicant is Jose Artehga, 
and the owner is Triple B A/C Services. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the applicant intends to operate a Car Wash out of an existing site.  The site 
includes a 2,975 sq. ft. building, a drive that runs parallel along the building that connects a 
driveway at the north of the site and a driveway at the south of the site, and a parking area.  The 
site includes six parking spaces.  The applicant will be able to accommodate three cars inside the 
garage at a time. Customers will park their car in the designated space in front of the building.  
After the customer has checked in, an employee will drive the car to the rear of the site and park 
the vehicle in a designated space or drive it inside the building to begin the car wash.  The 
applicant will have a small waiting area in the front office for customers. The Unified 
Development Code requires that auto-related businesses provide a minimum of six parking 
spaces and this site provides six.  Two of the parking spaces are designated for employees, four 
spaces are for customers, and the building has space for three cars.  This means that the site can 
reasonably accommodate seven customer cars at a time. The UDC requires that areas reserved 
for refuse storage be screened by a solid non-transparent masonry wall. The applicant is 
proposing to use a rollaway container instead. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the Development Review Committee recommends approval with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. Using City right-of-way for the parking or queuing of vehicles is prohibited. 
2. The front parking space shall be designated for customer car drop-off.  An employee 

shall immediately move the car to the rear of the site so that this space is available for the 
next customer. 

3. Operations must comply with the City of Grand Prairie’s Auto Related Businesses 
ordinance. 

4. Operations must comply with Environmental Services standards for commercial washing 
businesses, including installation of a grit trap. 

5. The applicant shall paint arrows on the drive to indicate that it is one-way and install 
signage on the rear of the building to prevent drivers from driving the wrong way. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, JUNE 8, 2020 
 

3 
 

 
 

6. The applicant must obtain approval from Republic Waste Services for a rollaway garbage 
container. 

7. The applicant shall continue commercial garbage collection service and provide evidence 
of continued service upon the City’s request. 

 
Chairperson Spare ask if the parking area was pave. Ms. Ware replied yes.   
 
Commissioner Smith said she has never heard of a Car Spa before, and asked if there is a need 
for car wash at this location. Ms. Ware stated there is currently a similar type of car wash on 
Main Street.  
 
Commissioner Moser notice the owner is Triple B A/C Services and asked if the owner was 
present to speak.  
 
Commissioner Perez ask how does the car wash on Main Street handle the traffic. Ms. Ware 
stated the car wash on Main Street is an associated use to the convenience store/gas station, she 
is not aware of an issue at this location.  
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no more questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and 
called for individuals wishing to speak on this item.  
 
Andres Barrangan, 3639 Canada Drive, Dallas, TX was present representing the case and the 
property owner.   
 
Chairperson Spare ask how many cars do they plan on washing. Mr. Barrangan said there would 
be no more than three vehicles at time.  
 
Commissioner Fisher said he would like to make sure the applicant and owner understand the 
conditions set forth by staff, and the number of employees onsite, we do not want to see cars 
park along the street, and asked how many car washes does the owner of this property have.  Mr. 
Barrangan stated they are aware of staff’s recommendation and conditions, they would have two 
to three employees onsite and this would be their first car wash in the city, their concept comes 
from another car wash in New York.  
 
Chairperson Spare said they are showing only two employee parking spaces, and asked if the 
owner would also be onsite at all times.  Mr. Barrangan stated not all of the employee would be 
parking onsite some would be drop off or live within the neighborhood the owner would always 
be onsite to make sure the business is in compliance.  
 
Commissioner Moser stated he would like to see more employee parking.  



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, JUNE 8, 2020 
 

4 
 

 
 

Commissioner Smith stated they could consider an RSVP or by appointment only in order to 
make sure, the parking does not become a problem.  Mr. Barrangan stated they could work by 
appointments only.   
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Fisher moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case SU200602/S200602 per staff’s recommendations and conditions. The 
action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Fisher        
Second: Connor                                 
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Perez, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
Commissioner Moser moved to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________  
Joshua Spare, Chairperson  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________  
Max Coleman, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on request at 972-237-8255. 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10074 Name: P170105A - Amending Plat - QT 946 Addition, Lot 2,
Block 1

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:6/15/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:6/22/2020

Title: P170105A - Amending Plat - QT 946 Addition, Lot 2, Block 1 (Commissioner Spare/City Council
District 6).  Amending Plat of Lot 2, Block 1, QT 946 Addition to adjust the location of the detention
easement. Lot 2, Block 1, QT 946 Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-
342, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 4043 Lake Ridge Pkwy. The agent is
Doug Stewart, Texas Heritage Survey and the owner is Jay Patel, Fusion Lodging, LLC

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Amending Plat

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
P170105A - Amending Plat - QT 946 Addition, Lot 2, Block 1 (Commissioner Spare/City Council District 6).
Amending Plat of Lot 2, Block 1, QT 946 Addition to adjust the location of the detention easement. Lot 2,
Block 1, QT 946 Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-342, within the IH-20
Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 4043 Lake Ridge Pkwy. The agent is Doug Stewart, Texas Heritage
Survey and the owner is Jay Patel, Fusion Lodging, LLC

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Amending Plat for Lot 2, Block 1, QT 946 Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-
342, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 4043 Lake Ridge Pkwy.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Amending Plat to adjust the location of the detention easement, abandon two detention pond

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10074, Version: 1

easements, and create a 15 foot wide water easement.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-342 Commerical

South SF-1 Undeveloped

West SF-1 Single-Family Residential

East PD-400 Undeveloped

HISTORY:

· On January 9th, 2017, the Planning and Zoning Commission passed case number P170105, which was
the Final Plat of the QT Addition, Lot 2, Block 1.

PLAT FEATURES:

The property is subject to density and dimensional requirements in Article 6 of the Unified Development Code
(UDC). The following table summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets the density and dimensional
requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 148,296 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 244 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 484 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

RECOMMENDATION:

Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following condition:

Prior to submitting the plat for final signatures and filing the plat with the county, the applicant shall revise
access easement to accommodate the future multi-family gated entry to the east.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



W Ih 20 Eb  

Lake Ridge Pkwy

Vicky Ln

Ernie Ln

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number P170105A - Amending Plat
QT 946 Addition, Lot 2, Block 1 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦20





City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10075 Name: RP200402 - Replat - Mira Lagos No. H Addition,
Lots 7R and 8R, Block D

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:6/15/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:6/22/2020

Title: RP200402 - Replat - Mira Lagos No. H Addition, Lots 7R and 8R, Block D (Commissioner Spare/City
Council District 6).  Consider a request for a replat to move lot line between Lots 7R and 8R.  Located
at 2819 and 2823 Mariposa Dr. Legally described as Mira Lagos No. H Addition, Lots 7 and 8, Block
D, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned for Planned Development 271C.  The owners
are Robert Garcia, Grand Homes, and Donald Pitre.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Replat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
RP200402 - Replat - Mira Lagos No. H Addition, Lots 7R and 8R, Block D (Commissioner Spare/City Council
District 6).  Consider a request for a replat to move lot line between Lots 7R and 8R.  Located at 2819 and 2823
Mariposa Dr. Legally described as Mira Lagos No. H Addition, Lots 7 and 8, Block D, City of Grand Prairie,
Tarrant County, Texas, zoned for Planned Development 271C.  The owners are Robert Garcia, Grand Homes,
and Donald Pitre.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

A Replat that is located at 2819 and 2823 Mariposa Dr. Legally described as Mira Lagos No. H, Lots 7 and 8,
Block D, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned for Planned Development 271C

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to move the property boundary between Lots 7 and 8, creating lots 7R and 8R.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10075, Version: 1

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-271C Single Family Residential

South PD-271C Single Family Residential

West PD-271C Single Family Residential

East PD-271C Single Family Residential

HISTORY:

· The property was previously platted as Mira Lagos No. H on October 6, 2014.

PLAT FEATURES:

The Replat depicts utility easements and building lot lines.

The property is zoned PD-271C for Single Family residential use. The following table summarizes the density
and dimensional requirements.  The Replat meets these requirements.

Table 2: Summary of Requirements

Standard Required

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 7,800

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 65

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 120

Front Setback (Ft.) 25

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of this Replat.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



E S
ee

to
n R

d

Br
isa

 D
r

Terrosa Dr

Mariposa Dr

Vienta Point
Br

isa
Ct

Savannah Dr
Vo

lar
 Ct

On
da

 Ct

Br
isa

 D
r

Vienta Point  

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number RP200402
Mira Lagos 
No. H Addition, Lots 7R and 8R, Block D ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie





City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10072 Name: SU200604/S200604 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan
- Texas Trust Credit Union

Status:Type: Ordinance Postponement

File created: In control:6/15/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:6/22/2020

Title: SU200604/S200604 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Texas Trust Credit Union (Commissioner
Hedin/City Council District 2).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for Texas Trust Credit Union, a 4,280
sq. ft. building with three drive-through lanes.  Lot 1R2, Block 1, Khol's Grand Prairie Addition, City of
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-21, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and
addressed as 5850 W IH-20. The agent is Oculus Inc., the applicant is Amy Scherer, L. Keeley
Construction, and the owner is Alan Barbee, Texas Trust Credit Union.
Tabled

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

SU200604/S200604 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Texas Trust Credit Union (Commissioner Hedin/City
Council District 2).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for Texas Trust Credit Union, a 4,280 sq. ft. building
with three drive-through lanes.  Lot 1R2, Block 1, Khol's Grand Prairie Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned PD-21, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 5850 W IH-20. The
agent is Oculus Inc., the applicant is Amy Scherer, L. Keeley Construction, and the owner is Alan Barbee,
Texas Trust Credit Union.
Tabled

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Table

Analysis

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-9994 Name: S200203 - Site Plan - Molto Warehouses at Hwy
161 and Rock Island Rd

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:5/15/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:6/22/2020

Title: S200203 - Site Plan - Molto Warehouses at Hwy 161 and Rock Island Rd (Commissioner Fisher/City
Council District 1).  Site Plan for a 205,000 SF warehouse & a 250,000 SF warehouse on one lot.
42.78 acres out of the John C. Read Survey, Abstract 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County,
Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally
located southeast of SH 161 Service Road and W. Hardrock Road, and addressed as 3545 Hardrock
Road, Grand Prairie, Texas. The applicant is Drew Hayes, Method Architecture, the consultant is Anna
Medvedeva, Langan Engineering, and the owner is Chad Parrish, Molto Properties.
City Council Action:  July 14, 2020

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: S200203 Exhibit A-Location Map

S200203 Exhibit B-Site Plan

S200203 Exhibit C-Landscape Plan

S200203 Exhibit D Bldg A Elev

S200203 Exhibit D Bldg B Elev

S200203 Exhibit E Tree Preservation

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
S200203 - Site Plan - Molto Warehouses at Hwy 161 and Rock Island Rd (Commissioner Fisher/City Council
District 1).  Site Plan for a 205,000 SF warehouse & a 250,000 SF warehouse on one lot.  42.78 acres out of the
John C. Read Survey, Abstract 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI)
District, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located southeast of SH 161 Service Road and
W. Hardrock Road, and addressed as 3545 Hardrock Road, Grand Prairie, Texas. The applicant is Drew Hayes,
Method Architecture, the consultant is Anna Medvedeva, Langan Engineering, and the owner is Chad Parrish,
Molto Properties.
City Council Action:  July 14, 2020

Presenter
Charles H. Lee, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-9994, Version: 1

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Site Plan for a 202,175 sq. ft. warehouse and a 252,555 sq. ft. warehouse on one lot. 42.78 acres out of the
John C. Read Survey, Abstract 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI)
District, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH 161 and south of W Rock
Island Rd.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct two warehouse buildings on 42.78 acres. Site Plan approval by City Council
is required for any project involving industrial use or that is located within a Corridor Overlay District.
Development at this location requires City Council approval of a Site Plan because the property is intended for
industrial uses with buildings exceeding 50,000 square feet.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

In addition, UDC’s Appendix X, Industrial Development Standards addresses potential adverse environmental,
visual, and truck traffic associated with large (50K-plus) warehouse, outside storage, distribution-logistical
related developments exceeding 5 acres in size.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

   Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North LI Undeveloped

South LI Industrial Uses

West (SH 161) PD-389 Undeveloped

East LI Undeveloped (Bear Creek)

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The proposal includes two rear-loaded office/warehouse-buildings along the State Highway 161 Corridor. The
buildings are speculative and will be developed without specific tenants.

· Building A is 202,175 sq. ft. The site will be accessible from two commercial drives off northbound
State Highway 161 Service Road and includes a south-facing truck dock with twenty-two overhead
doors.

· Building B is 252,555 sq. ft. The site will be accessible from three commercial drives with two off of
northbound State Highway 161 Service Road one from east bound Rock Island Road. Building B
proposes a south-facing truck dock with fifty-one overhead doors.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-9994, Version: 1

Density and Dimensional Requirements

Development is subject to the LI and Appendix X Industrial Development Standards in the UDC. - Zoning
Analysis Tables evaluates the density and dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal
meets the density and dimensional requirements.

Table 1 Site Data Summary for Lot 1

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 42.78 acres Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 1,800 s.f. Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 1,100 s.f. Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 50 + Yes

Side Setback (Ft.) 30 30 + Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 42.5 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.41:1 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix X of the UDC.
Zoning Analysis Tables summarizes the requirements. The site exceeds the minimum landscape area, number
of trees, and number of shrubs and screening requirements.

Table 2 Landscape & Screening Requirements for Lot 1

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 113,979 s.f. (10%) 148,554 s.f. (13%) Yes

Trees 228 min. 3” cal 228 min. 3” cal  Yes

Shrubs 2,278 shrubs 2,646 shrubs  Yes

Foundation Plantings Along Primary Facades Provided Plantings  Yes

Entrance Plantings At Building Entrance Provided Plantings  Yes

Truck Screening Wing Wall Provided Wing Walls  Yes

Parking will be screened utilizing 36” height berm, living screen and masonry wall.

The site shall provide 1.5 acres of open space, with 1,452 linear s.f. of walking trails with 24 seats and 9,112 s.f
of garden space.

Building Materials and Design

Industrial buildings greater than 50,000 sq. ft. are subject to the requirements in Appendix X of the UDC.
Appendix X requires that primary facades include at least three design elements and secondary facades include
at least two design elements. - Zoning Analysis Tables evaluates the design elements for each building. The
proposed building elevations meet Appendix X requirements.

Both buildings A&B consists of 100% exterior masonry construction utilizing textured concrete tilt-wall panels
of varying finishes and colors in compliance with required architectural articulation requirements. The
construction styles consist of two accent materials along the vertical surface. 18” Cornice projection shall
extend along the entire length of the primary facades. The primary facade shall provide accent lighting
minimum 50% of its length.

Table 3-1 Building Design Elements for Building A

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total ElementsMeets

North SecondaryY Y     Yes

South PrimaryY Y Y Y     Yes

West PrimaryY Y Y Y     Yes

East SecondaryY Y     Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-9994, Version: 1
Table 3-1 Building Design Elements for Building A

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total ElementsMeets

North SecondaryY Y     Yes

South PrimaryY Y Y Y     Yes

West PrimaryY Y Y Y     Yes

East SecondaryY Y     Yes

Table 3-2 Building Design Elements for Building B

FacadeTypea.b.c.d.e.f.g.h.i.Total ElementsMeets

NorthPrimaryY YYY    Yes

SouthSecondaryY Y    Yes

WestPrimaryY YYY    Yes

EastSecondaryY Y    Yes

VARIANCES:

No variances requested

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following conditions:

1. Subject to Planning & Zoning Commission approval of Traffic Impact Analysis as submitted.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



N 
Hw

y 1
61

 Sb
  

N 
Hw

y 1
61

 N
b  

W Rock Island Rd

No
 O

ffi
cia

l N
am

e  

CASE LOCATION MAPCase Number S200203
Molto Warehouses at HWY 161 and Rock Island Rd´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

EXHIBIT A



STOP STOP
STOP

STO
P

17220 Katy Freeway, First Floor, Suite 125
Houston, TX 77094

T: 281.675.7900 F: 281.675.7901   www.langan.com

©
 2

01
9 

La
ng

an

Langan Engineering and
Environmental Services, Inc.

Filename: \\langan.com\data\HOU\data0\510034001\Project Data\CAD\01\SheetFiles\Civil\510034001-CS101-0101.dwg  Date: 6/11/2020  Time: 16:44  User: amedvedeva  Style Table: Langan.stb  Layout: CS100

Vice President
2101 CityWest Boulevard

Houston, TX 77042

 c/o Chad Parrish
832-710-3095

EXHIBIT B-SITE PLAN



1

FOUNDATION PLANTING FOUNDATION PLANTING FOUNDATION PLANTING FOUNDATION PLANTING

WATER FEATURE AND
MONUMENT SIGN

SHADED SEATING AREA

CONCRETE WALKING TRAIL,
5' WIDTH, REFER TO CIVIL PLANS

FOUNDATION PLANTING

GARDEN AREA

GARDEN AREA GARDEN AREA GARDEN AREA GARDEN AREA

GARDEN AREA

GARDEN AREA

CONCRETE WALKING TRAIL,
5' WIDTH, REFER TO CIVIL PLANS

©
 2

01
8 

La
ng

an

17220 Katy Freeway, First Floor, Suite 125
Houston, TX 77094

T: 281.675.7900 F: 281.675.7901   www.langan.com

©
 2

01
8 

La
ng

an

Langan Engineering and
Environmental Services, Inc.

S
TAT E OF T EXAS

TC
ET

HI
RCAEPACSDNALDEE

GE
IS

R

RT

422 6

KO

RI N HAUG

A N

01/17/20

CASE #: S200203

0 60 120 240

SCALE: 1" = 120'-0"

KEY MAP
SCALE: 1" =500'

.01 .02

N

LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS - INDUSTRIAL
THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS

SITE LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS
1. 10% of the overall size of the platted lot shall be landscaped.
2. One (1) tree , 3" cal., per 500 s.f. of required landscape area.
3. One (1) shrub for each 50 s.f. of required landscape area.
4. 1% of the overall building dimension shall be situated so that

no portion is more than 50' from a public building entrance
and planted with annuals, perennials, or native grasses.

5. All portions of a Primary Facade not used as an entrance or
planting area shall have a row of hedges along the perimeter
of the building varying in height from 36" to 60" at maturity.

Total Site Area: 1,139,789 s.f. (26.16 acres)
Overall Building Dimension: 454,730 s.f.

Required Provided
113,979 s.f. (10%) 148,554 s.f. (13%)
(228) trees, 3" cal. (228) trees, 3" cal.
(2,278) shrubs (2,646) shrubs
4,547 s.f. (1%) 5,910 s.f. (1%)
Facade planting Facade planting

PERIMETER PARKING LOT AND SCREENING REQUIREMENTS
1. Parking shall be screened from public or private street

right-of-ways and located within the 30' setback using a 36"
ht. berm, living screen, masonry wall, or combination.

2. Perimeter parking lot screening shall be offset at least 6' for
every 60 l.f. of screening length.

INTERNAL PARKING LOT REQUIREMENTS
1. No parking space shall be further than 100' from a tree.
2. No more than 10 parking spaces shall be provided without a

landscape island separating the run of spaces.

LARGE OR MULTI-PHASE DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS
1. At least one (1) acre of open common space for each twenty

(20) acres to be developed at buildout.
2. For each acre of open space that is required, a min. 1,000' of

paved walking trails shall be provided.
3. Seating with a shaded area shall be provided that are within

300' of the nearest public building entrance, with seating
equivalent to 1 seat per 20,000 s.f. of proposed building area
at ultimate buildout.

4. An active water feature such as a fountain, waterfall, or
aerated pond.

5. One or more gardens measuring 1 s.f. for every 50 s.f. of
proposed building area at ultimate buildout.

Required Provided
1.307 acres of open space 1.50 acres of open space
1,307 l.f. of trail 1,452 l.f. of trail
23 seats 24 seats
9,095 s.f. of gardens 9,112 s.f. of gardens

EXHIBIT C LANDSCAPE PLAN



� � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � �

��
�����������

�
���� �

�
���� �

�
���� ��

���� �

�
���� �

�
���� �

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

�

�������� 

�!
��

���
� �"
�
����

#����$�����%&�'&

�

�

�

�

�

��
���

��
 

��
���

��
 

��
���

��
 

��
���

��
 

��
���

��
 

�
�����'�


�	'
��
�����'�


�	'
��
�����'�


�	'
��
�����'�


�	'
��
�����'�


�	'
��
�����'�


�	'
��
�����'�


�	'
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

�

����������������

������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� 

� � � � � � � ! ! ( �� �� �� ��

����������������"'�������
�����"'"����'�������'���'���

����������������"'�������
�����"'"����'�������'���'���

����������������"'�������
�����"'"����'�������'���'���

��
������������� 	��
)��'����'
�"�'
������"�'
���

���
�
��������"�'
���*

� ��+
�"���"
�
���	�
�	'*������ � 
� ��'
�"�'
�����%���,�-�����"
�
���	�
�	'.*���� � �
� 	��
)��'����'
�"�'
������/
���*����� � 

0��'���/�'
��*

� '�'������������'	*������� � 
� ��'
�"�'
�����%���,��-����'�'�����'	.*������� 
� 	��
)��'����'
�"�'
������/
���*������� � 

�

�
�'

	
�

�
��

�
�

	

'

��
'"

�
�$

��


�
�

�
��

�

�

	
'�

��
��

'	
��

��
�

�
�0


�
�

��
��

��
'	

��
��

�
��

�
'�

��
��

�
�'

	
�

�
��

�
	


'
��

'"
�

�$
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

'�
��

��
��

�
�

�
"

�
��

$��
�

�

�


�
�

$
�

�
�

�"
��

�
�
�

��
�

��
0

��
�0


'
	

�
"

'�
'	

��
�+

��
��

��
�

�0
�


'
'�

�
��

�
�


�
�


�
�

��
��

�
�'

	
�

�
��

�
�

	

'

��
'"

�
�$

�
�

&

�
�

'�
��

�
��

��
"

�
'�

�
�

��
��

�
/�

$
��

��
�


'
'


�
�

$
�

�
��

�
�

�'
�

"
�

'

�

�
��

�
��


�
'�

�
��

��
�

�
	


'
��

'

'�
��

�
�'

�*
��
��
��
��
�	
	

�
��


�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
�

��
&�

�&
�(

�
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��

(�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�

� �1������ 
��"
�
������ ��	���'
����������

EXHIBIT D-BUILDING A-ELEVATION



�&�&
���� � 

�����	�
�	'
����� � 

� � � � � � � 	

'&�&�&
����� � 

'���������������$������� ����
���0
'	��! �������'
����
�&�

��
���

��
 

(�
���

� 

�������� 

������� ������� ������ ������� ������ ������� ������� ������� ������� ������ ������� ������� ������� ������� ������ ������� ������� 

����������������"'�������
�����"'"����'�������'����'���

����������������"'�������
�����"'"����'�������'����'���

�&�&
���� � 

�����	�
�	'
����� � 

	 
 � �  � � �

'&�&�&
����� � 

'���������������$������� ����
���0
'	��! �������'
����
�&�

��
���

��
 

(�
���

� 

�������� 

������� ������� ������ ������� ������� ������� ������� ������ ������� ������� ������� ������� ������ ������� ������ ������� ������� 

����������������"'�������
�����"'"����'�������'����'���

����������������"'�������
�����"'"����'�������'����'���

�&�&
���� � 

�����	�
�	'
����� � 

'&�&�&
����� � 

'���������������$�������

��
���

��
 

(�
���

� 

������

������� ������� ������ �(����� ������� ������� ������� ������� 

�!������ 

�
�
�	�������


�	'���
�'�������/���'�+'"����'
'�0������&
�
�������*�'��

���
"����
�'�������/���'�+'"����'
'�0������&
�
�������*�'��

�������
�'�������/���'�+'"����'
'�0������&
�
�������*�'��

�
'�����
����'���4���������
�
�	��/���������'��'
'�0��
����&
�
�����'��
������*�'��

��
������������� ��'
�"�'
������"�'
���

���
�
��������"�'
���*

� ��+
�"���"
�
���	�
�	'*������ � 
� ��'
�"�'
�����%���,�-�����"
�
���	�
�	'.*���� � �
� /��'
�����'
�"�'
������/
���*����� � 

0��'���/�'
��*

� '�'������������'	*������� � 
� ��'
�"�'
�����%���,��-����'�'�����'	.*������� 
� /��'
�����'
�"�'
������/
���*������� � 

��
������������� �"��������������"�'
����
��"'	���/�'
��

� '�'��/��'
����"���������������������*���$�����%&��'&
� '
'�0��0
'	�� ���/���*���$�!(��%&��'&�,(�-.
� �
'�����
����'���*������%&��'&�,�-.

0��'���/�'
���

� '�'��/��'
����"���������������������*��($�!���%&��'&�
� '
'�0��0
'	�� ���/���*��!$�����%&��'&�,(�-.
� �
'�����
����'���4�������*�!����%&��'&�,�-.

�����
'��������������
�
��"���������
+�+$����'
����&�*� �����'�����'	��
��
����������� �	��
��"������-�������������'�"�'
���������
����
���&5$�

��"�
���'	�����'	��������'�����������'������0*

� �&�5*  '0���������������'���'��
��$�0	
�	�'���'	��������
����'����'�
��-����'	��/��'
����"��������������'	��������& 

� �&�6*  ������
���������'
���0
'	����
�
�"�����'	�����!�
��	��������'	��
��'
������'	����'	�������� 

� �&�7*  ��'
�"�'
���0
'	��'����'�'0���
�'
��'����������/��'
��������'
����'0���
�'
��'����������	��
)��'�������'��'����
����
�������'�
���'��-����'	���"
�
���	�
�	'$����	������
����'����'���-����'	��
�"
�
������'	& �

� �&�8*  �����'�
�	'
�����������
����
���'�'�
����'����'���-����'	��
���'	�������	���9���& 

��
������������� �
�
�	���'���

�

�
�'

	
�

�
��

�
�

	

'

��
'"

�
�$

��


�
�

�
��

�

�

	
'�

��
��

'	
��

��
�

�
�0


�
�

��
��

��
'	

��
��

�
��

�
'�

��
��

�
�'

	
�

�
��

�
	


'
��

'"
�

�$
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

'�
��

��
��

�
�

�
"

�
��

$��
�

�

�


�
�

$
�

�
�

�"
��

�
�
�

��
�

��
0

��
�0


'
	

�
"

'�
'	

��
�+

��
��

��
�

�0
�


'
'�

�
��

�
�


�
�


�
�

��
��

�
�'

	
�

�
��

�
�

	

'

��
'"

�
�$

�
�

&

�
�

'�
��

�
��

��
"

�
'�

�
�

��
��

�
/�

$
��

��
�


'
'


�
�

$
�

�
��

�
�

�'
�

"
�

'

�

�
��

�
��


�
'�

�
��

��
�

�
	


'
��

'

'�
��

�
�'

�*
��
��
��
��
�	
	

�
��


�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
�

��
&�

�&
�(

�
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��

(�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�4�� �1����� 
�0��'���/�'
���� ��
������ ������

�4�� �1����� 
�0��'���/�'
���� ��
�����������

�4�� �1����� 
���"'	���/�'
���� ����������"
�
������

�"
�
������

�"
�
������

EXHIBIT D-BUILDING A-ELEVATION



�&�&
���� � 

�����	�
�	'
����� � 

	
�����

��
���

( 

'�
�&

��
���

� '����������$�������

������� �!����� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� 

�������� 

� � � � � � � ! ( �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �! �( �� �� ��

�&�&
���� � 

�����	�
�	'
����� � 

�������	

��
���

( 

��
���

� '����������$�������

������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �!����� ������� 

�������� 

�� �� �� �� �� �! �( �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �! �( �� �� ��

�&�&
���� � 

�����	�
�	'
����� � 

'&�&�&
����� � 

� � � � � �

������� ������� ������ �(����� ������� ������� ������� ������� 

'���������������$�������

��
���

��
 

�!������ 

�
�
�	�������


�	'���
�'�������/���'�+'"����'
'�0������&
�
�������*�'��

���
"����
�'�������/���'�+'"����'
'�0������&
�
�������*�'��

�������
�'�������/���'�+'"����'
'�0������&
�
�������*�'��

�
'�����
����'���4���������
�
�	��/���������'��'
'�0��
����&
�
�����'��
������*�'��

�����
'��������������
�
��"���������
+�+$����'
����&�*� �����'�����'	��
���������������� �	��
��"������-�������������'�"�'
��$�
��"�
���
'0���'	��������'��������
���'������0*

� �&�5*  �������������'���'��
����������'������0
'	
����������
�����
�
�����-�'����-����'	����������'	�������� 

� �&�6* ��'
�"�'
���0
'	��'����'�'0�����������/��'
��������'��'���
�
����
�������'����'��-����'	���"
�
���	�
�	'$����	������
����'�
���'���-����'	���"
�
������'	&

������������������ �
�
�	���'���

������������������ ��'
�"�'
������"�'
���

���
�
��������"�'
���*

� ��+
�"���"
�
���	�
�	'*������ � 
� ��'
�"�'
�����%���,�-�����"
�
���	�
�	'.*���� � �
� /��'
�����'
�"�'
������/
���*����� � 

���'	4��"'	���/�'
��*

� '�'������������'	*��!���� � 
� ��'
�"�'
�����%���,��-����'�'�����'	.*������ � 
� '�'�����'	����/��'
�����'
�"�'
��*��!���� � 

���'���/�'
��*

� '�'������������'	*������� � 
� ��'
�"�'
�����%���,��-����'�'�����'	.*������ 
� '�'�����'	����/��'
�����'
�"�'
��*������� � 

�

�
�'

	
�

�
��

�
�

	

'

��
'"

�
�$

��


�
�

�
��

�

�

	
'�

��
��

'	
��

��
�

�
�0


�
�

��
��

��
'	

��
��

�
��

�
'�

��
��

�
�'

	
�

�
��

�
	


'
��

'"
�

�$
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

'�
��

��
��

�
�

�
"

�
��

$��
�

�

�


�
�

$
�

�
�

�"
��

�
�
�

��
�

��
0

��
�0


'
	

�
"

'�
'	

��
�+

��
��

��
�

�0
�


'
'�

�
��

�
�


�
�


�
�

��
��

�
�'

	
�

�
��

�
�

	

'

��
'"

�
�$

�
�

&

�
�

'�
��

�
��

��
"

�
'�

�
�

��
��

�
/�

$
��

��
�


'
'


�
�

$
�

�
��

�
�

�'
�

"
�

'

�

�
��

�
��


�
'�

�
��

��
�

�
	


'
��

'

'�
��

�
�'

�*
��
��
��
��
�	
	

�
��


�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
�

��
&�

�&
�(

�
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��

(�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�4�� �1����� 
����'���/�'
���� ����������������

�4�� �1����� 
����'���/�'
���� ����������������

�4�� �1����� 
����'	���/�'
���� ����������"
�
������

�"
�
������

�"
�
������

EXHIBIT D-BUILDING A-ELEVATION



� � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � �

�
���� �

�
���� �

�
���� �

��
�
����
����������������

� 
�� !�������

� 

�

� 
!�

��
�

��
�

�
���� �

�
���� �

�
���� �

"�#$���%&

�%
%$

���
%&

#

'

�

�

�

#%
$��

�%
&

�%
$��

�%
&

�%
$��

�%
&

�%
$��

�%
&

�%
$��

�%
&

�%
$��

�%
&

�

�

�������

�	�
��

�������

�	�
��

�������

�	�
��

�������

�	�
��

�������

�	�
��

�������

�	�
��

�($���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& �($���%&

������� !�������

��
�

�
�

�
� 

!�
��

�
��

�

��
�

��
��



�

	
�


�
�

��
�

��
��



�

	
�


�
�

� � � � � # ' " ( �% �� �� �� �� �� �#

�������

�	�
��

�������

�	�
��

�������

�	�
��

� �����������������������
�� ����� ����� �� ������� !

� �����������������������
�� ����� ����� �� ������� !

� �����������������������
�� ����� ����� �� ������� !

� 
�� !��������� 	� 
)������ �
����
���������
���

� �
�
�� !�������
���*

� ��+
������
�
���	�
�	�*���$�� #&
� � �
����
��� ��$��,�-������
�
���	�
�	�.*�$�� �&�
� 	� 
)������ �
����
���� �/
���*��$�� #&

�� �	���/��
��*

� ����������������	*���($�� %&
� � �
����
��� ��$��,��-�������������	.*���$�� %&
� ���������	����	� 
)������ �
����
��*����$�%&

0������/��
��*

� ����������������	*�"�#$�� %&
� � �
����
��� ��$��,��-�������������	.*��'$�%&
� ���������	����	� 
)������ �
����
��*��%�$�� %&

�

�
��

	
�

�
��

 
�

	

�

��
��

 
��

��


�
�

�
�!

 

�

	
��

�%
�'

�	
��

��
�

 
�0


�
�

��
� 

��
�	

��
� 

�
��

 
�!

��
��

�
��

	
�

�
� 

�
	


�
��

��
 

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�!

��
�

��
��

� 
��

 
�

�
�

�
��

���
�

�

�


�
�

�
�

�
 

��
��

�
�
�

��
�

!�
0

�!
�0


�
	

�
�

��
�	

��
�+

� 
��

��
�

�0
 


�
��

�
��

 
�


�
�


�
�

��
��

�
��

	
�

�
��

 
�

	

�

��
��

 
��

�
�

�

�
�

��
��

 
� 

��
�

�
��

 
!

��
� 

�
/�

�
��

� 
�


�
�


�
�

�
�

 
��

�
�

��
 

�
�

�

�

�
��

 
��


�
��

 
��

��
 

�
	


�
��

�

��
��

�
��

�*
��
��
��
��
�	
	

�
��


�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
�

��
��

%�
�(

�
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��

(�
%%

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�

�&�1��%$�%&
���
�
������ ��	����
����� ����

EXHIBIT D-BUILDING B-ELEVATION



����
%$�� %&

��� �	�
�	�
��$�� %&

� � � � � � � 	 


������
��$�� #&

������� ������������!���

� ���������������������
�� ����� ����� �� ������� !�

�� �
���0
�	��"&�� �����
����
����� �
���0
�	��"&�� �����
����
���

� ���������������������
�� ����� ����� �� ������� !�

�($���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%&

�$���#& �"$���%& �#$���%& �$���%& ��$���%& �$���%& ��$���#& ��$����& ��$����& �$���%& ��$���#& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���#& �$���%& ��$���#& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���#& �$���%& ��$���#& ��$���%&

����
%$�� %&

��� �	�
�	�
��$�� %&


 � �  � � � � �

������
��$�� #&

������� ������������!���
�� �
���0
�	��"&�� �����
����
���

� ���������������������
�� ����� ����� �� ������� !�

� ���������������������
�� ����� ����� �� ������� !�

��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& �($���%&

��$���%& ��$���#& �$���%& ��$���#& �"$���%& ��$���#& �$���%& ��$���#& ��$���%& ��$���%& ��$���#& �$���%& ��$����& ��$����& ��$���#& �$���%& ��$���%& �$���%& �#$���%& �"$���%& �$���#&

����
%$�� %&

��� �	�
�	�
��$�� %&

������
��$�� #&

������� ������������!���

#' � � �� �

��
$��

�%
&

($
���

%&

�#
$��

�%
&

��
$��

�%
&

#%$���%& �%$���%& �%$���%& �%$���%& �%$���%& �%$���%&

�� �
���0
�	��"&�� �����
����
���

�%$���%& #�$���%& �%$���%& ��$���%& �%$���%& �($���#& �$���%& ��$���#& ��$���#& �$���#&

�� �
���0
�	��"&�� �����
����
���

� 
�� !��������� � �
����
���������
���

� �
�
�� !�������
���*

� ��+
������
�
���	�
�	�*���$�� #&
� � �
����
��� ��$��,�-������
�
���	�
�	�.*�$�� �&�
� /� �
���� �
����
���� �/
���*��$�� #&

�� �	���/��
��*

� ����������������	*���($�� %&
� � �
����
��� ��$��,��-�������������	.*���$�� %&
� ���������	����/� �
���� �
����
��*��"�$�� #&

0������/��
��*

� ����������������	*�"�#$�� %&
� � �
����
��� ��$��,��-�������������	.*��'$�%&
� ���������	����/� �
���� �
����
��*��'�$�� %&

� 
�� !��������� �� ������ ���������
����
�� �	���/��
��

� �����/� �
����� ������ ����������� !*�����(#���������
� �
��0��0
�	��&� �/���*�����(����������,('-.
� �
������
��������*��%����������,�-.

0������/��
���

� �����/� �
����� ������ ����������� !*���������������
� �
��0��0
�	��&� �/���*�����%����������,("-.
� �
������
��������4����� !��
�
�	*���"���������,�-.

�
�
�	�������


�	����
������ ��/� ���+�� ����
��0�������
�
������ *����

���
�����
������ ��/� ���+�� ����
��0�������
�
������ *����

�� ����
������ ��/� ���+�� ����
��0�������
�
������ *����

����������� !��
�
�	��/� ����� �����
��0�������
�
������� 
������*����

�� ��
�!����� ����� �
 
������������
+�+������
������*�&������������	��
� 
�� !������� �	��
�������%%-������ !������ ���
���������
����
����5��

����
����	 �����	� ���������������
����������0*

� ���5* &�0������� !������������ 
����0	
�	������	� ����� 
�����������
�%-�����	��/� �
����� ������ �������	���������&

� ���6* &���� �
���� �����
���0
�	����
�
��������	�����"�
��	���������	��
���
 ������	�����	��������&

� ���7* &� �
����
���0
�	����������0���
��
����� �������/� �
���������
�����0���
��
����� �������	� 
)������������������
����
���������
������-�����	����
�
���	�
�	������	������
�������������-�����	��
��
�
�������	�&�

� ���8* &�������
�	�
�����������
����
�������
������������%-�����	��
����	�������	���9����&

� 
�� !��������� �
�
�	�������

�

�
��

	
�

�
��

 
�

	

�

��
��

 
��

��


�
�

�
�!

 

�

	
��

�%
�'

�	
��

��
�

 
�0


�
�

��
� 

��
�	

��
� 

�
��

 
�!

��
��

�
��

	
�

�
� 

�
	


�
��

��
 

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�!

��
�

��
��

� 
��

 
�

�
�

�
��

���
�

�

�


�
�

�
�

�
 

��
��

�
�
�

��
�

!�
0

�!
�0


�
	

�
�

��
�	

��
�+

� 
��

��
�

�0
 


�
��

�
��

 
�


�
�


�
�

��
��

�
��

	
�

�
��

 
�

	

�

��
��

 
��

�
�

�

�
�

��
��

 
� 

��
�

�
��

 
!

��
� 

�
/�

�
��

� 
�


�
�


�
�

�
�

 
��

�
�

��
 

�
�

�

�

�
��

 
��


�
��

 
��

��
 

�
	


�
��

�

��
��

�
��

�*
��
��
��
��
�	
	

�
��


�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
�

��
��

%�
�(

�
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��

(�
%%

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�4�#&�1��$�%&
�0������/��
���� � 
�� !�������

�4�#&�1��$�%&
�0������/��
���� � 
�� !�������

�4�#&�1��$�%&
��� �	���/��
���� � 
�� !

��
�
������

��
�
������

��
�
������

EXHIBIT D-BUILDING B-ELEVATION



����
%$�� %&

��� �	�
�	�
��$�� %&


�������

������� ������������!���

#$
���

�&

�!
��

�$
���

#&

��$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%&

���$���%&

� � � � � # ' " ( �% �� �� �� �� �� �# �' �" �( �% �� �� �� �� ��

����
%$�� %&

��/��	��
��$�� (&

��� �	�
�	�
��$�� %&

�������	


������� ������������!���

�#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& �#$���%& ��$���%&

���$���%&

�# �' �" �( �% �� �� �� �� �� �# �' �" �( �% �� �� �� �� �� �# �' �" �( �% ��

�!
��

�$
���

#&

����
%$�� %&

��� �	�
�	�
��$�� %&

������
��$�� #&

��
$��

�%
&

($
���

%&

��$���%& ��$���#& �$���%& �($���%& ��$���%& ��$���%& �%$���#& #�$���%&

# '��� ��

������� ������������!���

�$
���

#&

�$
���

%&

�� ��
�!����� ����� �
 
������������
+�+������
������*�&������������	��
������� !������� �	��
�������%%-������ !������ ���
����
����
���
�0����	� ���������������
����������0*

� ���5* &����� !������������ 
��� ����������� �0
�	
������ ���
���� 
�
����%-������-�����	��� �������	��������&

� ���6* � �
����
���0
�	����������0��� �������/� �
���������������
�
����
���������������-�����	����
�
���	�
�	������	������
������
�������-�����	����
�
�������	�

������� !��������� �
�
�	�������

�
�
�	�������


�	����
������ ��/� ���+�� ����
��0�������
�
������ *����

���
�����
������ ��/� ���+�� ����
��0�������
�
������ *����

�� ����
������ ��/� ���+�� ����
��0�������
�
������ *����

����������� !��
�
�	��/� ����� �����
��0�������
�
������� 
������*����

������� !��������� � �
����
���������
���

� �
�
�� !�������
���*

� ��+
������
�
���	�
�	�*���$�� #&
� � �
����
��� ��$��,�-������
�
���	�
�	�.*�$�� �&�
� /� �
���� �
����
���� �/
���*��$�� #&

����	���/��
��*

� ����������������	*���($�� %&
� � �
����
��� ��$��,��-�������������	.*���$�� %&
� ���������	����/� �
���� �
����
��*��"�$�� #&

�������/��
��*

� ����������������	*�"�#$�� %&
� � �
����
��� ��$��,��-�������������	.*��'$�%&
� ���������	����/� �
���� �
����
��*��'�$�� %&

�

�
��

	
�

�
��

 
�

	

�

��
��

 
��

��


�
�

�
�!

 

�

	
��

�%
�'

�	
��

��
�

 
�0


�
�

��
� 

��
�	

��
� 

�
��

 
�!

��
��

�
��

	
�

�
� 

�
	


�
��

��
 

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�!

��
�

��
��

� 
��

 
�

�
�

�
��

���
�

�

�


�
�

�
�

�
 

��
��

�
�
�

��
�

!�
0

�!
�0


�
	

�
�

��
�	

��
�+

� 
��

��
�

�0
 


�
��

�
��

 
�


�
�


�
�

��
��

�
��

	
�

�
��

 
�

	

�

��
��

 
��

�
�

�

�
�

��
��

 
� 

��
�

�
��

 
!

��
� 

�
/�

�
��

� 
�


�
�


�
�

�
�

 
��

�
�

��
 

�
�

�

�

�
��

 
��


�
��

 
��

��
 

�
	


�
��

�

��
��

�
��

�*
��
��
��
��
�	
	

�
��


�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
�

��
��

%�
�(

�
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��

(�
%%

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�4�#&�1��$�%&
��������/��
���� ������� !�������

�4�#&�1��$�%&
��������/��
���� ������� !�������

�4�#&�1��$�%&
�����	���/��
���� ������� !��
�
������

��
�
������

��
�
������

EXHIBIT D-BUILDING B-ELEVATION



1

51995198

5197

5196

5195
5194

5193
519251915190

5189
5188

5187
5186

5185
5184

5183

5182

5181

5180
5179

5178
5177

51765175
5174
51735172

51715170

5168

5169

5167
5166

516551645163

5001

5003

50025162

5161

5004

5005

5141

51375140

5090
5089

5091
5009

5006

5008

5007

5010

5017

5020

5018
5019

5021
5022

5024

5124
5027

5028

5029

5025

50235026

5016

5101

50145100

5099

5097
5098

5102

5127

5126
5125

5122
5121

5011

5096

50945093

5138
5139

51425143

5144

5150
5151

5092

5088

5087

5084
5085

5095

5083

5147

5146
5145

5148

5103

5104

5105

5106

5130

5108

5107

5134

5135

5136

50825081
5078

50805079

5152

5154

5153
5015

5156
5155

5157
5158

5159

5077

5076

5075
5074

5070

5071
5072

5073
5068 5067

5066
5065

5064

5063

5062
51315061

5060

5059
5132

5058

5364

5056

5363
5055

5362

5057

5054

5365

53695370

5372

5371

5358

5373

5374

5360

5367

5361
5378

5399

5375

5368

5376

5386

5384

53885389

5387

5397

5359

5366
5377

5379

53835381
5398

5396

5393

5390
5297

5395 5274
5394

5391

5356
5353

5354
5355

5350

5340

5349

5341

5351

53525345
5321

5344

5343

5342
5347

5346

5348

5311

5310

5319

5337
5336

5317
5318

5334
5338

5320

5339

5323

5333
5332

5329

5330
5307

5335

5306

5304

5305

5324

5325

5326
5160

5328

5331
5327

5357

5133

5053
5052

5050
5031

5049

5048

5047

5114

5113

5115

5117

5046

5118

5116

5045

5111

5110

5112

5109

5119
5128

5129

5120

5038

5042

5043

5044

5039

5040
5041

5031
5030

5033
5034

5035
5036
5037

5032

5123

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP.

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP.

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP.

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP.

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP.

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP.

9612
9611

9625

9621

9623

9622

9624

9619

9620

9614

96139616

961796159618
9610

9609

96039601
9604

9607

9605
9606

9608

9602

5309

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP.

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP.

EXISTING TREES
TO BE REMOVED, TYP.

EXISTING TREES
TO BE REMOVED, TYP.

EXISTING TREES
TO BE REMOVED, TYP.

EXISTING TREES
TO BE REMOVED, TYP.

EXISTING TREES
TO BE REMOVED, TYP.

©
 2

01
8 

La
ng

an

17220 Katy Freeway, First Floor, Suite 125
Houston, TX 77094

T: 281.675.7900 F: 281.675.7901   www.langan.com

©
 2

01
8 

La
ng

an

Langan Engineering and
Environmental Services, Inc.

S
TAT E OF T EXAS

TC
ET

HI
RCAEPACSDNALDEE

GE
IS

R

RT

422 6

KO

RI N HAUG

A N

01/17/20

CASE #: S200203

N

0 40 80 160

SCALE: 1" = 80'-0"

X

EXISTING TREE
TO BE REMOVED

TREE PROTECTION FENCING
TO REMAIN DURING CONSTRUCTION
REFER TO 01/L1.01

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREE LEGEND

4
'-

0
" 

M
IN

.
3
'-

0
"

LIMITS OF DRIPLINE

01TREE PROTECTIVE FENCING
NOT TO SCALE

REFER TO PLAN FOR
EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

EXISTING GRADE TO
REMAIN UNDISTURBED

METAL T-POST PLACED NO
FURTHER THAN 15' APART

SNOW FENCE, ORANGE VINYL
CONSTRUCTION FENCE, OR
CHAINLINK FENCE

TREE PRESERVATION NOTES

1. EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN SHALL BE PROTECTED
DURING CONSTRUCTION FROM TREE STRUCTURE
DAMAGE AND COMPACTION OF SOIL UNDER AND
AROUND DRIP LINE (CANOPY) OF TREE.

2. IF ANY ROOT STRUCTURE IS DAMAGED DURING
ADJACENT EXCAVATION / CONSTRUCTION, NOTIFY
OWNER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
IMMEDIATELY.  IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT A LICENSED
ARBORIST BE SECURED FOR THE TREATMENT OF ANY
POSSIBLE TREE WOUNDS.

3. NO DISTURBANCE OF THE SOIL GREATER THAN 4"
SHALL BE LOCATED CLOSER TO THE TREE TRUNK
THAN 1/2 THE DISTANCE OF THE DRIP LINE TO THE
TREE TRUNK.  A MINIMUM OF 75% OF THE DRIP LINE
AND ROOT ZONE SHALL BE PRESERVED AT NATURAL
GRADE.

4. ANY FINE GRADING DONE WITHIN THE CRITICAL ROOT
ZONES OF THE PROTECTED TREES MUST BE DONE
WITH LIGHT MACHINERY SUCH AS A BOBCAT OR
LIGHT TRACTOR.  NO EARTH MOVING EQUIPMENT
WITH TRACKS IS ALLOWED WITHIN THE CRITICAL
ROOT ZONE OF THE TREES.

5. NO MATERIALS INTENDED FOR USE IN CONSTRUCTION
OR WASTE MATERIALS ACCUMULATED DUE TO
EXCAVATION OR DEMOLITION SHALL BE PLACED
WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE DRIP LINE OF ANY TREE.

6. NO EQUIPMENT MAY BE CLEANED OR TOXIC
SOLUTIONS, OR OTHER LIQUID CHEMICALS, SHALL BE
DEPOSITED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE DRIP LINE OF A
TREE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO:  PAINT, OIL,
SOLVENTS, ASPHALT, CONCRETE, MORTAR, PRIMERS,
ETC.

7. NO SIGNS, WIRES OR OTHER ATTACHMENTS, OTHER
THAN THOSE OF A PROTECTIVE NATURE, SHALL BE
ATTACHED TO ANY TREE.

8. NO VEHICULAR / CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT TRAFFIC
OR PARKING IS ALLOWED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE
DRIP LINE OF TREES.

9. BORING OF UTILITIES MAY BE PERMITTED UNDER
PROTECTED TREES IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES.  THE
MINIMUM LENGTH OF THE BORE SHALL BE THE WIDTH
OF THE TREE'S CANOPY AND SHALL BE A MINIMUM
DEPTH OF FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES.

10. IRRIGATION TRENCHING WHICH MUST BE DONE WITHIN
THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF A TREE SHALL BE DUG
BY HAND AND ENTER THE AREA IN A RADIAL MANNER.

11. ALL TREES TO BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE SHALL BE
FLAGGED BY THE CONTRACTOR WITH BRIGHT RED
VINYL TAPE (3" WIDTH) WRAPPED AROUND THE MAIN
TRUNK AT A HEIGHT OF FOUR (4') FEET ABOVE GRADE.
FLAGGING SHALL BE APPROVED BY OWNER'S
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO ANY TREE
REMOVAL.  CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT OWNER'S
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE WITH 72 HOURS
NOTICE TO SCHEDULE ON-SITE MEETING.

12. ALL TREES TO REMAIN, AS NOTED ON DRAWINGS,
SHALL HAVE PROTECTIVE FENCING LOCATED AT THE
TREE'S DRIP LINE.  THE PROTECTIVE FENCING MAY BE
COMPRISED OF SNOW FENCING, ORANGE VINYL
CONSTRUCTION FENCING, CHAIN LINK FENCE OR
OTHER SIMILAR FENCING WITH A FOUR (4') FOOT
APPROXIMATE HEIGHT.  THE PROTECTIVE FENCING
SHALL BE LOCATED AS INDICATED ON THE TREE
PROTECTION DETAIL.

13. WHEN A LOW HANGING LIMB IS BROKEN DURING THE
COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
NOTIFY THE OWNER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
IMMEDIATELY.  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCE SHALL THE
CONTRACTOR PRUNE ANY PORTION OF THE DAMAGED
TREE WITHOUT THE PRIOR APPROVAL BY THE
OWNER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE.

EXHIBIT E-TREE PRESERVATION PLAN



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10077 Name: S200603 - Site Plan - Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:6/15/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:6/22/2020

Title: S200603 - Site Plan - Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park (Commissioner Fisher/City Council District 1).  Site
Plan for Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park, a development with two warehouse buildings totaling 550,518
sq. ft. on 33.44 acres.  Tracts 14.2 and 27, Isreal Jennings Survey, Abstract No. 679, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial, and addressed as 2400 and 2701 W Hunter
Ferrell Rd. The applicant is B. Cooper, CHI/Acquisitions, L.P., the owner is Hunter Ferrell Land, L.P.,
and Pete Lindamood.
City Council Action:  July 14, 2020

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan for Building A.pdf

Exhibit C - Site Plan for Building B.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations for Building A.pdf

Exhibit E - Building Elevations for Building B.pdf

Exhibit F - Landscape Plan for Building A.pdf

Exhibit G - Landscape Plan for Building B.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
S200603 - Site Plan - Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park (Commissioner Fisher/City Council District 1).  Site Plan
for Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park, a development with two warehouse buildings totaling 550,518 sq. ft. on 33.44
acres.  Tracts 14.2 and 27, Isreal Jennings Survey, Abstract No. 679, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County,
Texas, zoned Light Industrial, and addressed as 2400 and 2701 W Hunter Ferrell Rd. The applicant is B.
Cooper, CHI/Acquisitions, L.P., the owner is Hunter Ferrell Land, L.P., and Pete Lindamood.
City Council Action:  July 14, 2020

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 1 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10077, Version: 1

Site Plan for Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park, a development with two warehouse buildings totaling 550,518 sq.
ft. on 33.44 acres. Tracts 14.2 and 27, Isreal Jennings Survey, Abstract No. 679, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial, and addressed as 2400 and 2701 W Hunter Ferrell Rd.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct two warehouse buildings on 33 acres. Site Plan approval by City Council is
required for any project involving industrial use. Development at this location requires City Council approval
of a Site Plan because the property is intended for industrial use.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North (Site A) City of Irving Mobile Home Park

North (Site B) Light Industrial; PD-9 Truck Parking, Auto Related Use

South Light Industrial Undeveloped, Floodway

West Light Industrial Lone Star Park Trailhead, Undeveloped

East Light Industrial Auto Related Use, Undeveloped

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The applicant is proposing two development scenarios: the construction of Building A on 13.2 acres or the
construction of Building A and Building B on 33 acres.

Building A Site Plan

The 13.2-acre site is accessible by two points on W Hunter Ferrell Rd. The proposed warehouse building is
252,919 sq. ft. and has a loading dock on the south side of the building with 54 dock doors. The site includes
160 parking spaces and 60 trailer parking spaces.

Building B Site Plan

The 19.82-acre site is accessible from W Hunter Ferrell Rd via a shared drive. The proposed warehouse
building is 166,642 sq. ft. and has a loading dock on the north side of the building with 31 dock doors. The site
includes 159 parking spaces and 50 trailer parking spaces.

Site Access and Traffic Impact

The right-of-way for Hunter Ferrell Rd is within the City of Irving. This means that driveway widths and
spacing, median openings, deceleration lanes, and pedestrian/bicycle facilities must be approved by the City of
Irving. The proposed access points do not align with existing median openings; any median modifications must
also be approved by the City of Irving.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 2 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10077, Version: 1

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

Development is subject to the LI standards in the UDC. The tables below evaluate the density and dimensional
standards of the proposed development. The proposal meets the density and dimensional requirements with the
exception of minimum lot width for Site B.

Table 2A: Site Data Summary for Site A

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 593,127 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 1,253 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 508.97 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 30 Yes

Side Setback (Ft.) 30 30 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 46.5 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.44:1 Yes

Table 2B: Site Data Summary for Site B

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 863,184 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 82.16 No

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 568.83 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 30 Yes

Side Setback (Ft.) 30 89.5 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 49 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.44:1 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix X of the UDC. The
proposal substantially complies with landscape and screening requirements.

Table 3A: Landscape & Screening Requirements for Site A

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 59,312 98,969 Yes

Trees 131 116 No

Shrubs 1,186 2,241 Yes

Foundation Plantings Along Primary Facades Along Primary Facades Yes

Entrance Plantings At Building Entrance At Building Entrance Yes

Table 3B: Landscape & Screening Requirements for Site B

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 86,318 450,319 Yes

Trees 183 170 No

Shrubs 1,726 1,775 Yes

Entrance Plantings At Building Entrance At Building Entrance Yes
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 3 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10077, Version: 1

Table 3B: Landscape & Screening Requirements for Site B

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 86,318 450,319 Yes

Trees 183 170 No

Shrubs 1,726 1,775 Yes

Entrance Plantings At Building Entrance At Building Entrance Yes

Building Materials and Design

Industrial buildings greater than 50,000 sq. ft. are subject to the requirements in Appendix X of the UDC.
Appendix X requires that primary facades include at least three design elements and secondary facades include
at least two design elements.  The proposed building elevations meet the design requirements.

Table 4A: Building Design Elements for Building A

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total ElementsMeets

North Primaryx x x 3 Yes

South Secondaryx x 2 Yes

West Primaryx x x 3 Yes

East Primaryx x x 3 Yes

Table 4B: Building Design Elements for Building B

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total ElementsMeets

North Primaryx x x 3 Yes

South Secondaryx x 2 Yes

West Primaryx x x 3 Yes

East Primaryx x x 3 Yes

Table 4C: Summary of Building Design Elements

Letter Primary Facades Element Secondary Facades Element

a. Masonry Accents Masonry Accent

b. Glass - 15% Cornice Projection

c. Awning Windows - 30%

d. Cornice Projection Articulation

e. Articulation

f. Accent Lighting

g. Colonnade

h. Wing Wall

i. Windows - 30%

VARIANCES:

City Council may approve variances to Appendix X if the applicant demonstrates that the proposal meets the
intent of the ordinance and that the alternative design or measure provides an equal or greater level of quality
and standard of development as mandated by the regulations. As a part of this Site Plan, the applicant is
requesting the variances listed below.

1. Truck Docks Location for Building B - Truck docks are prohibited along any primary facade.

2. Tree Preservation Requirements - Appendix X requires that developers submit a tree survey and
preserves a minimum of 30% of the total existing caliper inches. The applicant has not submitted a tree
survey.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 4 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10077, Version: 1

3. Minimum Lot Width for Site B - Site B does not meet the minimum required lot width.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall coordinate with the Parks Department to connect the proposed walking trails to the
existing trail west of the property. The applicant shall construct this connection in conjunction with the
proposed trail and activation feature.

2. The applicant shall provide an additional row of street trees closer to Hunter Ferrell Rd to create shade
along the existing trail. These trees will count towards the required number of trees. The proposed
number of trees is 28 less than what is required. The applicant shall coordinate with the Parks
Department and City of Irving on the placement of trees along the trail.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 5 of 5

powered by Legistar™



W Hunter Ferrell Rd

M
ac

ar
th

ur
 B

lvd

No Official Name

W
rangler St

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number S200603
Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

§̈¦30

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Site Plan for Building A
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Site Plan for Building B
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit D - Building Elevations for Building A
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit E - Building Elevations for Building B
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit F - Landscape Plan for Building A
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit G - Landscape Plan for Building B
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10078 Name: SU200603 - Specific Use Permit - Camp Wisdom
Plaza

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:6/15/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:6/22/2020

Title: SU200603 - Specific Use Permit - Camp Wisdom Plaza (Commissioner Connor/City Council District
4).  Specific Use Permit for Beer/Wine Sales in a proposed Convenience Store with Gasoline Sales.
A portion of Tracts 2C05 and 2C05A, John W Harwood Survey, Abstract No. 661, City of Grand
Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-130, and generally located at the northwest corner of W
Camp Wisdom Rd and Lynn Rd. The applicant is Houshang Jahuani, Jahani Consulting Engineers
Inc., and the owner is Anil Pathak.
City Council Action:  July 14, 2020

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Property Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Attachment i - Citizen Comment.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

SU200603 - Specific Use Permit - Camp Wisdom Plaza (Commissioner Connor/City Council District 4).
Specific Use Permit for Beer/Wine Sales in a proposed Convenience Store with Gasoline Sales.  A portion of
Tracts 2C05 and 2C05A, John W Harwood Survey, Abstract No. 661, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County,
Texas, zoned PD-130, and generally located at the northwest corner of W Camp Wisdom Rd and Lynn Rd. The
applicant is Houshang Jahuani, Jahani Consulting Engineers Inc., and the owner is Anil Pathak.
City Council Action:  July 14, 2020

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Specific Use Permit for Beer/Wine Sales in a proposed Convenience Store with Gasoline Sales. A portion of
Tracts 2C05 and 2C05A, John W Harwood Survey, Abstract No. 661, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County,
Texas, zoned PD-130, and generally located at the northwest corner of W Camp Wisdom Rd and Lynn Rd.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10078, Version: 1

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

This request is for a Specific Use Permit to allow Beer/Wine Sales in a proposed Convenience Store. PD-130
states that additional uses shall be allowed, as prescribed in Section B-100 of the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance for the General Retail District, upon approval of a Specific Use Permit. Section B-100 shows that
the Sale of Alcoholic Beverages for Off-Premise Consumption requires a Specific Use Permit.

The purpose of the Specific Use Permit process is to identify those uses which might be appropriate within a
zoning district, but due to either their location, functional or operational nature, could have potentially negative
impact upon surrounding properties; and to provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be permitted by
further restricting or conditioning them so as to eliminate such probable negative impacts.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-130 Single-Family Residences

East None Lynn Road
South None West Camp Wisdom Road
West PD-130 Single-Family Residences

HISTORY:

· December 6, 1983: City Council approved a zoning change (Case Number 830803), creating a Planned
Development District for General Retail, Single Family Detached Residential, Single Family Attached
Residential, and Multi-Family Residential uses.

· January 21, 2020: City Council approved a Site Plan (Case Number S200101) for Convenience Store
with Gasoline Sales and Retail uses. The Site Plan includes a 9,919 sq. ft. building separated into a
4,275 sq. ft. convenience store with a drive through and four 1,411 sq. ft. retail tenant spaces, two way
circulation, dumpster enclosure, and 120 parking spaces.

RECOMMENDATION:

Residents from the adjacent neighborhood raised concerns about traffic, noise, and lighting during the Planning
and Zoning Commission meeting and City Council meeting for Case Number S200101. Approval of this
Specific Use Permit will increase the items available for purchase at the proposed Convenience Store. This
could increase the number of trips generated by the Convenience Store and might also increase the negative
impacts generated by this use.

City Council may establish conditions of operation, location, arrangement and construction of any authorized
special use. City Council may impose such development standards and safeguards as conditions warrant for the
welfare and protection of adjacent properties and citizenry.

Given the proximity of this location to an existing neighborhood, citizens’ concerns about traffic, noise, and
lighting, and the possibility that adding this use could exacerbate potential negative impacts of the proposed
development, staff recommends the following conditions:

· The applicant shall construct the required masonry screening wall with Phase 1;

· The masonry screening wall shall be a minimum of eight feet in height;

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10078, Version: 1

· The applicant shall provide a landscape buffer along the screening wall that is at least 15 feet wide; and

· The applicant shall plant native shade trees, a minimum of three inches in caliper, every 15 feet in the
landscape buffer.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 6/19/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 2



Ly
nn

 R
d

Timber Ct

Garden Oak Pl

W Camp Wisdom Rd

Conrad Ln
Potter Ct

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number SU200603
Camp Wisdom Plaza ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T360

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 2



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1



1

Savannah Ware

From: Eric & Shawna Anderson <esbecc@yahoo.com>

Sent: Friday, June 19, 2020 12:55 PM

To: Savannah Ware

Subject: Case #SU200603

We are members of the Garden Oaks neighborhood and oppose the 24-hour gas station with all-night beer and wine 
sales. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Shawna Anderson 


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10073
	Microsoft Word - 06-08-2020.doc
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10074
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8619245&GUID=75E06B39-549F-4306-915C-35878E0281A8
	P:\Drawings\2016\1603000-1603999\1603740\1603740-8 AMENDING PLAT PLAT (1)
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10075
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8612880&GUID=C33C1E5D-6A5F-43D1-8B72-FC6491300AF6
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8612881&GUID=2C3819B8-5EB3-4357-BB25-A97A73D34A84
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10072
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-9994
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8624425&GUID=8F404123-9F66-4F87-9D80-81BD83A6C0B4
	Site Plan
	L2.03 - Landscape Specifications
	2019.12.10  - GRAND PRAIRIE BP - BUILDING 2 - SD.pdf
	2019.12.10  - GRAND PRAIRIE BP - BUILDING 1 - SD.pdf
	L2.03 - Landscape Specifications
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10077
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8626282&GUID=AD78B827-925D-499E-BAD2-7824DCEDD144
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8626283&GUID=5E8BC0E4-26AF-46DC-81A7-13E9A71F16F5
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8626284&GUID=E50E8C48-E768-4F70-8B31-1CC217D7BBA6
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8626285&GUID=79B24F4A-54E7-4327-8ADE-2ADC6398D45C
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8626286&GUID=BCD5A1B5-58BD-4EC9-B66C-6BA920563A70
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8626287&GUID=E5DEC214-1D3C-4924-A3E4-FDB52D99D704
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8626288&GUID=7FFBFE55-E84B-4792-A753-98DDCF795B48
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10078
	Model
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8626051&GUID=EA64F396-3CBB-42F4-9121-FE1D0872FF59
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8626052&GUID=4930DD81-B138-4CF1-969E-70C2BD672C4E




